The Corporation of the City of Kawartha Lakes MINUTES

SPECIAL COUNCIL INFORMATION MEETING

CC2017-15
Tuesday, May 23, 2017
Open Session Commencing at 1:00 p.m.
Council Chambers
City Hall
26 Francis Street, Lindsay, Ontario K9V 5R8

MEMBERS:

Mayor Andy Letham Councillor Isaac Breadner **Councillor Pat Dunn Councillor Doug Elmslie Councillor Gord James Councillor Gerard Jilesen** Councillor Brian S. Junkin **Councillor Rob Macklem Councillor Mary Ann Martin Councillor Gord Miller Councillor Patrick O'Reilly Councillor John Pollard** Councillor Kathleen Seymour-Fagan **Councillor Heather Stauble Councillor Stephen Strangway Councillor Andrew Veale Councillor Emmett Yeo**

Accessible formats and communication supports are available upon request.

1. CALL TO ORDER

Mayor Letham called the meeting to order at 1:00 p.m. Councillors I. Breadner, P. Dunn, D. Elmslie, G. James, G. Jilesen, B. Junkin, M.A. Martin, G. Miller, K. Seymour-Fagan, H. Stauble, S. Strangway and A. Veale were in attendance.

CAO R. Taylor, City Clerk J. Currins and various other staff were also in attendance.

Late Arrival: Councillor R. Macklem 1:05 p.m.

Early Departure: Councillor P. Dunn 1:44 p.m. returned at 2:35 p.m.

2. ADOPTION OF AGENDA

CR2017-442
Moved By Councillor Elmslie
Seconded By Councillor Strangway

RESOLVED THAT the Agenda for the Open Session of the Special Council Information Meeting of Tuesday, May 23, 2017, be adopted as circulated.

CARRIED

3. <u>DISCLOSURE OF PECUNIARY INTEREST</u>

There were no declarations of pecuniary interest noted.

4. **PUBLIC INFORMATION**

4.1 Presentations

4.1.1 CC2017-15.4.1.1

Stephen Strangway, Councillor Norman Price, Chair, Accessibility Advisory Committee Barbara Condie, Accessibility Officer 2017 Accessibility Awareness Awards

This item was dealt with after item 4.1.2.

Councillor Strangway gave introductory remarks and provided an overview of the Accessibility Awards. He introduced members of the Accessibility Advisory Committee (AAC) present at the meeting. Elizabeth Peeters and Sharon Copeland, members of the AAC announced each award recipient and provided a brief overview of their achievement. Mayor Letham, Chair N. Price, Councillor Strangway and Accessibility Officer B. Condie presented each award.

Congratulation was extended to all award recipients. A copy of the presentation is available in the Clerk's Office.

4.1.2 CC2017-15.4.1.2

Andy Letham, Mayor
Pat Warren, Chair, Environmental Advisory Committee
2016 Environmental Hero of the Year - Adult and Youth

This item was dealt with prior to item 4.1.1.

Pat Warren, Chair of the City Environmental Hero of the Year provide a brief overview of the Award Recipients. Ms. Gay Fletcher and her team were the recipients of the Environmental Hero of the Year Adult Award for work to clean up Garnet Graham Park in Fenelon Falls. Ms. Fletcher and four of her team members accepted the award from Mayor Letham, Councillor Miller, Chair P. Warren.

The Environmental Hero of the Year Award for Youth was given to the Bobcaygeon Public School ECO Club. The Club members were recognized for their efforts installing nesting boxes, monitoring school recycling and promoting school recycling. Councillor Seymour-Fagan accepted the award on their behalf and the Mayor will make a presentation at the school at a later date.

4.1.3 CC2017-15.4.1.3

Brianna Salmon, Executive Director, Greenup
Jane Gray, Policy and Engagement Advisor, Fleming College
Regional Centre of Expertise on Sustainability Education
Regional Centre of Expertise in Education for Sustainable Development

Ms. Salmon explained that Regional Centres of Expertise are networks of existing partners who are mobilized to jointly promote all types of learning for a sustainable future. The Kawartha's including City of Kawartha Lakes, City of Peterborough, County of Peterborough, County of Haliburton and four first nation communities have received the UN Designation. Only two other communities in Ontario, being Sudbury and Toronto have this designation. The objectives are to integrate Sustainable Development into policies, create partnerships, get youth involved, support local communities and strengthen the capacity of educators, trainers, and other change agents to become learning facilitators. The Program builds on strengths with the formal education facilities in the area and addresses challenges in the environment, socio-cultural and economic. June 6th at Frost Campus of Fleming College a celebration of the designation will take place. The

group is looking for Council support through participation in working groups. They answered questions put forth by members of Council. A copy of the presentation is available in the Clerk's Office.

CR2017-443

Moved By Councillor Martin
Seconded By Councillor Jilesen

RESOLVED THAT the presentation by Brianna Salmon and Jane Gray, regarding Regional Centre of Expertise in Education for Sustainable Development, be received.

CARRIED

4.1.4 CC2017-15.4.1.4

Cathy Bell, Inspector, OPP Kawartha Lakes Detachment OPP Detachment Update

Inspector Bell reviewed the Strategic Plan and the main headings of Leadership, Healthy Workforce, Technology, Analytics and Reinvestment. She reviewed the opportunities that exist with the staff and programs and also the challenges that are faced by the force.

Inspector Bell outlined partnerships in the community, for example they have a program that partners with the hospital mental health with trained professionals to assist officers to deal with this issue. Vehicles are equipped with GPS for officer safety and accountability. She noted the partnership with the Community Policing Advisory Committee. The organization is looking for ways to streamline processed to keep officers in the community and with enhanced technology, officers are able to do work in the field as opposed to being off the road in the office. Public education is a very active division that provides training in the community for such as internet and email scams. Inspector Bell thanked Council for their support and answered questions put forth by members of Council. A copy of the presentation is available in the Clerk's Office.

CR2017-444

Moved By Councillor Macklem **Seconded By** Councillor Miller

RESOLVED THAT the presentation by Cathy Bell, Inspector, Detachment Commander of the Kawartha Lakes OPP Detachment, regarding an OPP Detachment Update, be received.

CARRIED

4.1.5 CC2017-15.4.1.5

Richard Fedy, Environmental Action Bobcaygeon Active Transportation Plan

Mr. Fedy provided background information on Environmental Action Bobcaygeon Inc. that was formed to encourage and promote projects that will enhance the environment. He reviewed several past projects. Mr. Fedy explained that it was their intention to create an Active Transportation Plan template for Bobcaygeon that could be used across the entire City. It supports many of the goals of the Bobcaygeon Secondary Plan and the Integrated Sustainability Plan. He asked for Council support when the staff report comes forward. He answered questions put forth by members of Council. A copy of the presentation is available in the Clerk's Office.

CR2017-445

Moved By Councillor Breadner **Seconded By** Councillor Miller

RESOLVED THAT the presentation by Richard Fedy, regarding Active Transportation Plan - Bobcaygeon, be received.

CARRIED

4.1.6 CC2017-15.4.1.6

Susan Blayney, Member of Kawartha Lakes Environmental Advisory Committee Shelly Candel, Director of Bee City Canada Bee City Designation

Ms. Blayner, a member of the City of Kawartha Lakes Environmental Advisory Committee reviewed the request to have the City of Kawartha Lakes designated as a Bee City. This will make Kawartha Lakes a visible model for progressive implementation of initiatives designed to protect and encourage native pollinator populations. She explained the three components of being a Bee City and the work that has taken place on this issue. Ms. Shelly Candel, Director of Bee City Canada also reiterated the importance of the designation and the connection it provides to other designated areas that allows sharing of information for reaching a sustainable objective for the future. She asked that Council consider this designation as it sends a powerful message to the residents of the City and in particular the youth as we can all go to the garden and plant something to

support the pollinator population. They answered questions put forth by members of Council. A copy of the presentation is available in the Clerk's Office.

CR2017-446

Moved By Councillor Breadner Seconded By Councillor Miller

RESOLVED THAT the presentation by Susan Blayney, Member of the Kawartha Lakes Environmental Advisory Committee and Shelly Candel, Director of Bee City, regarding Bee City Designation, be received; and

THAT the matter of designating the City of Kawartha Lakes as a Bee City be referred to staff for a report back on the options for supporting this Designation.

CARRIED

- 5. <u>REPORTS</u>
- 6. <u>CLOSED SESSION</u>
- 7. MATTERS FROM CLOSED SESSION
- 8. **CONFIRMING BY-LAW**

CR2017-447

Moved By Councillor Elmslie Seconded By Councillor Martin

RESOLVED THAT a by-law to confirm the proceedings of a Special Council Information Meeting held Tuesday, May 23, 2017 be read a first, second and third time, passed, numbered, signed and the corporate seal attached.

CARRIED

9. ADJOURNMENT

CR2017-448

Moved By Councillor Dunn

Seconded By Councillor Macklem

RESOLVED THAT the Special Council Information Meeting adjourn at 2:38 p.m.

CARRIED

Read and adopted this 6th day of June, 2017.

		_
Andy Letham, Mayor	Judy Currins, City Clerk	